
INCLUSIVE GROWTH AND PUBLIC POLICY PANEL

MEETING TO BE HELD AT 2.30 PM ON FRIDAY, 1 MARCH 2019
IN HUDDERSFIELD NEW COLLEGE, NEW HEY ROAD, 

HUDDERSFIELD, HD3 4GL

A G E N D A

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2. DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS

3. POSSIBLE EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

4. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 4 DECEMBER 2018
(Pages 1 - 4)

5. LEARNING FROM INCLUSIVE GROWTH BEST PRACTICE
(Pages 5 - 8)

6. INCLUSIVE GROWTH STRATEGIC FRAMEWORK
(Pages 9 - 16)

7. BROADBAND ROLLOUT
(Pages 17 - 22)

8. DIGITAL INCLUSION
(Pages 23 - 32)

9. OPPORTUNITIES FOR WEST YORKSHIRE IN THE CONTEXT 
OF THE NHS LONG TERM PLAN AND INCLUSIVE GROWTH
(Pages 33 - 36)

10. REVIEW OF INCLUSIVE GROWTH FOR BUSINESS GRANTS
(Pages 37 - 44)

11. FUNDING FOR INCLUSIVE GROWTH
(Pages 45 - 48)



12. DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING - 9 MAY 2019

Signed:

Managing Director
West Yorkshire Combined Authority



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE INCLUSIVE GROWTH AND PUBLIC 
POLICY PANEL HELD ON TUESDAY 4 DECEMBER 2018 AT COMMITTEE 

ROOM A, WELLINGTON HOUSE, LEEDS

Present:
Councillor Shabir Pandor (Chair) Kirklees Council
Councillor Darren Byford Wakefield Council
Councillor Barry Collins Calderdale Council
Councillor Debra Coupar Leeds City Council
Councillor Alex Ross-Shaw Bradford Council
Nicola Greenan Creative/Arts

In attendance:
Bill Adams TUC
Alan Reiss West Yorkshire Combined Authority
James Flanagan West Yorkshire Combined Authority
Britta Berger-Voigt West Yorkshire Combined Authority
Sarah Bowes West Yorkshire Combined Authority
Steve Heckley West Yorkshire Combined Authority
Ben Kearns West Yorkshire Combined Authority

1.  Apologies for absence

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Keith Aspden, Cathy 
Scott and Liz Town-Andrews, Mike Hawking. 

2.  Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

There were no pecuniary interests declared by members at the meeting.

3.  Possible exclusion of the press and public

There were no items on the agenda requiring the exclusion of the press and 
public.

4.  Minutes of the meeting held on 4 September 2018

Resolved: That the minutes of the Inclusive growth and Public Policy Panel 
held on the 4 September be approved.

5.  Local Inclusive Industrial Strategy and Leeds City Region Policy 
Framework

The Panel was updated on the development of a Policy Framework and a 

1

Agenda Item 4



Local Inclusive Industrial Strategy for Leeds City Region. 

The Panel was informed that government is co-producing industrial strategies 
in waves and Leeds City Region will be in wave 3. The Panel heard that 
inclusive growth will be embedded in the Leeds City Region Industrial Strategy. 

A draft prospectus had been produced which identified areas for improvement 
in the existing knowledge base. Gaps in the knowledge base, including 
productivity, innovation networks and supply chains, will be addressed. The 
Panel was informed that the approach to the evidence base will be as inclusive 
as possible with community groups and young people to be involved. 

The ongoing work regarding the Local Inclusive Industrial strategy will be 
reported to the Inclusive Growth Panel in addition to the LEP Board.

Members discussed the Policy Framework and how the inclusive growth strand 
could apply to the region. Members reiterated a need for a meaningful, well-
defined, approach to inclusive growth with a real focus on practical measures. 
It was felt that a clear definition of inclusive growth would help promote the 
work of the Panel. The Panel was informed that the Policy Framework would 
evolve and change and that their comments would be taken on board.  

Resolved: 

(i) That the progress made on the development of the evidence base be 
noted.

(ii) That the proposed way forward on the development of the evidence 
base be endorsed.

6.  Workshop Report

The Panel discussed the outcomes of their first workshop held in November. 
The key areas of discussion included good work, digital inclusion and health 
and these will form part of the Panel’s work programme. 

Members were pleased with the quality and depth of discussion and looked 
forward to future workshops. The Panel discussed the opportunity to build on 
the discussion by visiting sites and projects across the districts. It was felt that 
this would provide the Panel with the opportunity to further investigate local 
best practice and see what can be learned or upscaled. The Kirklees 
community hubs was suggested as a possible example.

It was suggested that officers would report back to the Chair and Chief 
Executive member with a future workshop program.

Resolved: To note that the Panel held its first workshop in November and that 
the key points raised and discussions considered in the report and elsewhere 
on the agenda should inform the Panel’s work programme. 

2



7.  Digital Inclusion

The Panel considered a report about Digital Inclusion. The Panel was informed 
that the Digital Framework consultation was endorsed by the LEP board and 
provided a mandate to address digital inclusion.

The Panel discussed some of the work being carried out across the districts on 
digital inclusion. In particular, the work Leeds City Council was carrying out 
with Good Things Foundation was identified as a leading scheme in the area. 

The report outlined various possible actions and the Panel discussed possible 
approaches to address digital inclusion and felt that a better understanding of 
the regional context was required. This included collecting baseline data so as 
to more clearly understand the regional picture and to see what can be up 
scaled from the districts. The Panel requested more detail around the financial 
impact of the different options outlined in the report as well as likely outcomes 
at local level. The Panel also requested an update on the progress of the 
broadband rollout.
 
Resolved: That the Panel discussed the opportunities around digital inclusion 
activity and provided a steer on the suggested direction of travel.

8.  Health and Healthy Streets

The Panel and workshop had previously considered a number of issues 
around public health which had been identified as a central part of the inclusive 
growth agenda, including the need to reduce health inequalities. In relation to 
this, the Panel was provided with a presentation on the proposed West 
Yorkshire Healthy Streets initiative which included plans to implement 
‘demonstration projects’ in each of the five districts, with a particular focus on 
the inclusive growth corridors and driving health improvements. 

It was recognised that Healthy Streets encompassed multiple policy agendas, 
including transport, public health, place making and inclusive growth. The 
Panel discussed how the Healthy Streets initiative may fit into its work. It was 
noted that while Healthy Streets sits with the Transport Committee and the 
individual districts at an operational level, there was an opportunity for the 
Panel to feed into the design of the proposed demonstrators at a more 
strategic level, in order, for example, to maximise public health improvements. 
It was suggested therefore that there could usefully be an emphasis placed 
through the demonstrators on addressing health inequalities and reducing air 
pollution in our most deprived communities.

The Panel requested more evidence and further thinking around the inclusive 
growth applications with a particular focus on health inequalities.   

Resolved: That the Panel discussed the opportunities around health, and in 
particular the proposed regional Healthy Streets initiative, and provided a steer 
on the Panel’s preferred role in shaping the regional approach.

3



9.  Good Work

The Panel considered a report about Good Work and was informed of some of 
the activities already in place to promote Good Work. The Panel noted the 
funding made available by the Business Rates Pool Committee for inclusive 
growth projects designed to drive good work and it was suggested that the 
Panel could liaise with the Business Rates Pool Committee to gain further 
insight. 

The Panel was provided with a presentation from Bill Adams from TUC which 
outlined the TUC’s ‘Great Jobs’ Agenda. The Agenda provided a series of 
criteria for ‘great jobs’. The Panel commended the ‘Great Jobs’ Agenda and 
discussed how it might be worked towards. Some suggestions included using 
aspects of the Great Jobs agenda as criteria for business awards and 
championing the Good Work agenda to promote change. 

Resolved: That the current range of activity across the City Region be noted 
and that the Panel discuss a future focus around good employment.

10.  Funding Opportunities

The Panel considered a report about the funding opportunities available to 
drive inclusive growth across the region. The Panel noted the projects funded 
through the Business Rates Pool as well as the Growing Places Fund.

The Panel was informed that options for funding would be presented at the 
next meeting, including an update regarding the use of the Growing Places 
Fund for inclusive growth purposes. 

Resolved: That the current and potential funding streams to drive inclusive 
growth across the City Region be noted.

11.  Governance Arrangements

The Panel discussed the possibility of reviewing its membership and recruiting 
new private sector members. It was noted that it was important for future 
members to come from a diverse range of backgrounds and represent different 
viewpoints on the inclusive growth agenda. 

Some possible options were outlined for the Panel including the possibility of a 
full scale recruitment process for all LEP Panels with new members appointed 
in the summer, subject to a steer on process from the LEP Board. The 
importance of an inclusive recruitment policy was noted. 

Resolved: To consider any changes to the membership of the Panel which 
would be useful to help progress the work programme.

12.  Date of the next meeting - 1 March 2019

4



Report to: Inclusive Growth and Public Policy Panel

Date:  1 March 2019

Subject:  Learning from Inclusive Growth Best Practice

Director(s): Alan Reiss, Director of Policy, Strategy and Communications 

Author(s): Britta Berger-Voigt

1. Purpose

1.1 To consider a presentation on the best practices in Equality and Diversity 
adopted by Huddersfield New College and how it is reflected in college and 
learner performance. Also to propose a wider programme of visiting other 
employers, third sector organisations and partnership networks including 
those practicing and promoting good work, reducing health inequalities and 
digital exclusion.

1.2 To consider publishing a series of papers which capture the learning from 
these visits in order to promote inclusive growth best practices so they are 
more widely adopted in the region.

2. Information

Thematic focus

2.1 Leeds City Region is home to a range of organisations that are actively 
seeking to make economic growth in the region more inclusive. These include 
public and private sector organisations, third sector organisations and local 
partnership networks that are improving lives in a tangible way.

2.2 The Leeds City Region Inclusive Growth Workshop held in November 2018 
provided Panel members and local partners with an insight into a number of 
best practices, for example Grant Thornton’s inclusive approach to 
recruitment. In the December Panel meeting, members requested further 
insight into similar practical approaches of inclusive growth in the region and 
asked for site visits to be arranged. 

2.3. Holding Panel meetings at organisations that are promoting economic 
inclusion is a practical way for members to gain first-hand insight into best 

5

Agenda Item 5



practice delivered in the region and help inform the development of a strategic 
inclusive growth framework which is considered in more detail elsewhere on 
the agenda.

2.4. Examples of best practice delivered by regional organisations that members 
could gain an insight to could include:

 Being a good employer – e.g. paying the living wage, procurement practices 
that maximise social value, inclusive recruitment practices, offering training 
opportunities to all staff and ensuring progression opportunities, as well as 
giving staff opportunities to contribute to wider society including through 
volunteering. New College, Huddersfield is recognised as an exemplar of 
equality and diversity.

 Digital inclusion – There are a wide range of (mainly third sector) 
organisations that are supporting residents in becoming more digitally literate. 
Digital skills are key in enabling people to access public services and to 
benefit from being online more generally.  Digital inclusion is considered in 
more detail elsewhere on the Agenda.

 Health inequalities – Learning from regional employers that are making a 
conscious effort to employ people with disabilities and that ensure a healthy 
workplace by making the physical and mental health of staff a priority.  Health 
inequalities are increasingly being seen as a barrier to growth.  For example, 
recent research by the Northern Health Science Alliance demonstrates the 
impact of tackling health inequalities across the North of England. It finds that 
up to 30% of the productivity gap with the UK average could be reduced by 
addressing ill health.

New College Huddersfield – Best practice in Equality, Diversity and Inclusion  

2.5 Good practice of Equality and Diversity is an innate part of being a ‘good 
employer’ by ensuring all people have the same opportunities to access a 
wide range of jobs and training. Creating an inclusive work culture has also 
been shown to increase business innovation through harnessing the richest 
possible mix of skills, ideas perspectives and experiences. In industries with 
skills shortages, and post-Brexit with more restricted movement of labour in 
place, tapping into - and recruiting from - the widest local talent pool is 
increasingly vital for employers.  

2.6 Through applying its inclusive approach to learners as well as staff, New 
College is also an enabler of diverse and skilled workforce. This allows a wider 
range of people access to skills provision and in turn widens the pool of a 
future workforce.

2.7 Holding this Panel meeting at New College Huddersfield will provide 
members with an insight into best practice of Equality and Diversity which has 
been acknowledged as outstanding by both Ofsted and the National Centre for 
Diversity (NCD). The College has been named as the UK Organisation of the 
Year by the NCD for its equality and diversity practices for two years running. 

6



2.8 The National Centre for Diversity acknowledges the work of individual staff 
members at the College, as well as the broader strategic approach to Equality, 
Diversity and Inclusion (EDI)1. This includes the contribution of a dedicated 
Equality and Diversity Manager, members of staff leading a range of EDI 
initiatives as well as the work of the EDI Steering Group.

2.9 In their 2018 report, Ofsted rate the College as outstanding and particularly 
welcome the college’s approach to Equality and Diversity:

Equality of opportunity is central to the college’s mission. Learners are 
valued for who they are and this in turn results in a respectful and 
harmonious learner community, in which all members accept each other’s 
differences.

2.10 The College’s far-reaching commitment is reflected in its comprehensive 
Equality Opportunities Policy and the associated Action Plans, including;

 “Staff recruitment and selection, training, promotion and career 
management, grievance, disciplinary and capability procedures”.

 “Student admissions, choice of programme of study, assessment 
decisions, grievance and disciplinary procedures”.

2.11 The College also provides all students with a guide to equality and diversity to 
illustrate the benefits of such approach and holds events to bring equality and 
diversity to life. 

2.12 During the meeting, the Panel will receive a presentation providing further 
insight how this best practice at the College benefits staff, as well as improving 
the performance of both the College and their students.

Further possible site visits

2.13 Further site visits would provide Panel members with a broader insight into 
best practice in the region which could serve to inform specific future Inclusive 
Growth interventions and identify learning for wider dissemination.  Panel 
members are asked to consider, and add to, the following initial list of 
organisations for future site visits:

 West Yorkshire Fire Service offers a wide range of skills and work 
experience programmes for young people, particularly those from 
disadvantaged backgrounds. 

 West Yorkshire Police has implemented a range of strategies for its 
workforce to represent the diverse communities it serves.

 Grant Thornton have implemented inclusive recruitment practices to 
broaden their talent pool and to also provide a more non-traditional route 
into work and work-experience for people from a deprived backgrounds. 

1   The National Centre for Diversity ranked Huddersfield New College first in their ‘Top 100’ Equality and 
Diversity index. https://www.nationalcentrefordiversity.com/home/award-ceremonies/grand-awards-
2019/2019-top-100-index/

7



 The LS14 Trust runs a range of projects to enable communities to make 
Seacroft, Swarcliffe and Whinmoor better places for residents and bring 
about “sustain positive social change”. For instance, the Trust’s ‘Digital 
Lounge’ provides digital skills to support those who are digitally excluded.

 Kirklees Community Hubs have been established to create a place 
based children, family and community infrastructure to improve outcomes 
around children safeguarding, learning and skills, economic resilience and 
health.

2.14 Members are asked to consider the benefit of incorporating scheduled Panel 
meetings into site visits and identifying other learning visits which could be 
undertaken by a smaller group of members and officers.

3. Financial Implications

3.1 There are no financial implications arising as a direct result of this report.

4. Legal Implications

4.1 There are no legal implications directly arising from this report.

5. Staffing Implications

5.1 There are no staffing implications arising as a direct result of this report.

6. External Consultees

6.1 There is currently no requirement for external consultations to be undertaken.

7. Recommendations

7.1 That the Panel:

 Consider and welcome the approach adopted by New College, 
Huddersfield as an exemplar in equality and diversity practices;

 Instruct officers to develop a best practice note for wider dissemination on 
the Equality and Diversity based on the New College approach;

 Consider, and add to, the initial list of organisations for future site visits 
shown at 2.13;

 Consider the benefit of incorporating scheduled Panel meetings into site 
visits, and identifying other learning visits that could be undertaken by a 
smaller group of members and officers

8. Background Documents

8.1 None 

9. Appendices

9.1 None 

8



Report to: Inclusive Growth and Public Policy Panel

Date:  1 March 2019

Subject:  Inclusive Growth Strategic Framework

Director(s): Alan Reiss, Director of Policy, Strategy and Communications 

Author(s): Britta Berger-Voigt and James Flanagan

1. Purpose of this report

1.1 To propose the development of a strategic framework in order to further 
embed an inclusive approach into regional growth activities.  

1.2 To consider a draft skeleton framework included at Appendix 1. 

2. Information

Thematic focus

2.1 One of the key challenges in the Leeds City Region is that not all residents 
have equal opportunities to contribute to and benefit from economic growth. 
For this very reason, the LEP and the West Yorkshire Combined Authority 
Board agreed that Inclusive Growth needs to be at the core of the City 
Region’s strategies (not least its Local Inclusive Industrial Strategy (LIIS)), and 
establishing the formal Inclusive Growth and Public Policy Panel was a direct 
result of that.

2.2 The Government recently invited representatives from the City Region 
(including from Bradford and Leeds City Council, the Combined Authority and 
the Joseph Rowntree Foundation) as an exemplar of a City Region that has 
made good progress embedding Inclusive Growth across delivery 
programmes, as well as policies and strategies (particularly the emerging LIIS 
and the whole Policy Framework). It has long been established that no ‘single 
big idea’ could bring about more Inclusive Growth. Thus, only embedding 
Inclusive Growth in an integrated way will allow sustained interventions to 
bring about the structural economic change required to open up opportunities 
for deprived communities. 

9

Agenda Item 6



2.3 To help to ensure that Inclusive Growth features sufficiently in local and 
regional policies (including the LIIS and policy framework), and because the 
scope of the LIIS is expected to be partial, a broader, stand-alone, Strategic 
Inclusive Growth Framework is proposed to inform local and regional policies, 
plans and activities. A draft skeleton Inclusive Growth Framework is included 
for discussion in Appendix 1. This further aims to stimulate discussions with 
district partners, as well as other public and private sector partners to co-
design the final Framework.

2.4 This Framework could be “owned” by the Inclusive Growth and Public Policy 
Panel and prepared by an officer support group.

What is meant by Inclusive Growth?

2.5 The Panel has previously raised the issue of not having a clear and consistent 
working definition of Inclusive Growth to guide their work. It is recommended 
that the Panel uses the definition from the RSA’s Commission into Inclusive 
Growth (2016). This Commission settled on “Inclusive Growth” as a key issue 
because it speaks to two related priorities in the post-financial crisis economy: 
economic inclusion and economic growth.  

2.6 The Commission arrived at the following definition of Inclusive Growth:
 Enabling as many people as possible to contribute to, and benefit from, 

economic growth.
 This ambition has two dimensions:

o Social - benefitting people across the labour market spectrum, 
including groups that face particularly high barriers to high quality 
employment.

o Place - addressing inequalities in opportunity within an economic 
geography.

Inclusive Growth Strategic Framework

2.7 The broad aim of the Inclusive Growth Strategic Framework is to provide a 
strategic and long-term framework for Inclusive Growth activities in the region 
that encourages a wide range of public sector, private and third sector 
partners to work together to reach agreed goals which will increase 
opportunities for those residents and communities that are currently excluded 
from economic growth.  

2.8 The ‘skeleton’ Framework is therefore centred on the main inclusion 
challenges in the region and the effects of these inhibitors on different groups 
of residents. The enablers and possible interventions included in the draft 
framework illustrate which resident groups and places are most in need of 
specific enabling factors. This granular understanding of exclusion can in turn 
inform targeted inclusion policies and bold sub-regional solutions for City 
Region residents.

2.9 To ensure programmes are delivered in an inclusive way, the Framework 
could directly address some or all of the following:

10



 Re-state what is meant by Inclusive Growth – based on a bottom up as well as 
top down understanding. 

 Establish a clear base line through the use of maps and data-visualisation 
(noting any limits in data sets).

 Identify and engage with the specific groups and areas that face the biggest 
barriers to accessing economic and learning opportunities (including 
community groups), work out what those barriers are, and what to do about 
removing them through additional investments and interventions.

 Fully recognise what the LEP and Combined Authority is already doing in 
terms of key Inclusive Growth investments and interventions, the contribution 
being made, and the consequences if we didn’t do those things (e.g. the 
impact of cuts in bus service subsidies on the poorest in society).

 Identify what more others, including LAs, Government, business, communities 
and other partners should do.

 Identify and acknowledge any trade-offs, e.g. more inclusion for less growth/ 
productivity, reducing emissions by penalising motorists, giving more space for 
cyclists vs cars/buses, more open data for less privacy.

 Assessment of resource and capacity implications to ensure delivery
 A robust impact framework (to enable the monitoring and evaluation e.g. of 

earnings growth in our most deprived areas, and drawing on more general 
SEP Good Growth indicators).

2.10 The Framework will inform delivery programmes with a focus on the most 
prominent exclusion challenges and by building on existing strengths to inform 
targeted local solutions. Depending on the Panel’s recommendations on how 
to allocate funding currently available to drive Inclusive Growth in the City 
Region (see Item 11 for more details), programmes could include access to:
 In-work progression, fair pay and secure work.
 Equality, diversity and inclusion in the workplace.
 Healthy workplaces – employers encouraging physical activity;
 Skills and training that are beneficial to the individual and the local labour 

market.
 Housing that is affordable and of high quality.
 Transport connections that connect deprived communities better to 

economic opportunities.  
 A greater awareness of local employment opportunities.

2.11 When considering the Framework, the following should be taken into 
consideration:

 Although the analysis of the problem has been thorough (e.g. OECD, RSA 
Commission into Inclusive Growth, World Bank, CLES, etc.), the policy 
prescriptions proposed have been much less well articulated, especially at the 
local level, which has made the development of a coherent Leeds City Region 
programme - and with it a robust monitoring framework - challenging.

 Deprivation takes many different forms and requires tailored measures which 
address the specific needs of a community. Best evidence shows that those 

11



approaches that work the best are co-designed with the communities 
themselves and thus have their buy-in, rather than top-down with little local 
consultation.

 It is equally important that the LEP and district partners collaborate effectively 
to co-ordinate our related efforts to best effect, based on shared objectives, 
and respecting the principle of subsidiarity.

 The resources needed locally to deliver Inclusive Growth interventions at scale 
have been denied by the Government’s policy responses to the financial crisis:
o Centre for Cities reported that austerity cuts have fallen hardest on 

deprived communities in the north of England, which are enduring the 
highest poverty rates and weakest economies.

o Cuts in local spend on prevention (e.g. Early Years such as Sure Start) 
have also been as a result of increases in dealing with symptoms rather 
than causes, e.g. rising children’s social care costs.

o In comparison, the devolved nations have been able to better protect their 
public services - compared with English spend on Local Government and 
schools, Scotland and Wales have maintained an additional annual spend 
of approximately £800-£900 per capita (per capita spending in England is 
£1,423, in Scotland it is about £2,230 and in Wales just over £2,300).

o Leeds City Region is also disadvantaged compared parts of England that 
have Mayoral devolution deals in place, with significant capital and 
revenue investment funds devolved.

 A more ‘inclusive’ and consistent form of language that can be used with 
internal and external audiences which would position Inclusive Growth as 
doing things together with communities rather than to them is a central 
communications and engagement challenge.

2.12 Delivering Inclusive Growth means tackling the barriers that most constrain 
people from contributing to and benefitting from growth, ranging from poor skills, 
ill health (including those caused by environmental factors such as pollution), 
inadequate local transport, gender and ethnic inequalities/ discrimination, and 
childhood deprivation. Examples of relevant types of sub regional interventions 
therefore include:

 Targeted investment in physical infrastructure – such as more affordable, 
better insulated housing, improved transport connectivity for everyone, flood 
prevention, broadband. An example could be Inclusive Growth Corridors.  

 Boosting social infrastructure – e.g. public health, early years support, 
careers and enterprise advice in schools, skills/apprenticeships and 
employment services, business support. An example could be digital skills 
training for low income families and individuals.

 ‘Blended’ investments and interventions – note that because of its statutory 
functions and remit, Leeds City Region is well placed to deliver and co-
ordinate integrated interventions.  An example could include ‘Healthy Streets’ 
(i.e. combining public health, place making/regeneration and transport).

12



2.13 Also, looking forward in terms of a possible future ‘West Yorkshire and North 
Yorkshire’s Local Inclusive Industrial Strategy’, we must keep in view that a 
broader-based definition of ‘inclusive’ might emerge, factoring in specific wider 
rural and coastal inclusion issues within North Yorkshire.

2.14 Next steps to co-design the Framework could include setting up a regional 
working group, including district partners, as well as other public sector, private 
and third sector partners.  

3. Financial Implications

3.1 Staff time will be allocated from existing teams and budgets.

4. Legal Implications

4.1 There are no legal implications directly arising from this report.

5. Staffing Implications

5.1 Staff time will be allocated from existing teams and budgets implications 
involve the re-prioritisation of existing staff time.

6. External Consultees

6.1 There is currently no requirement for external consultations to be undertaken.

7. Recommendations

7.1 To adopt the RSA definition of Inclusive Growth set out above.

7.2 To decide whether the Panel should take a leading role in implementing a 
more strategic approach of Inclusive Growth across the City Region.

7.3 To inform and directly shape the development of the Strategic Inclusive 
Growth Framework.

8. Background Documents

8.1 None

9. Appendices

9.1 ‘Skeleton’ Inclusive Growth Framework 

13



This page is intentionally left blank



DRAFT INCLUSIVE GROWTH ‘SKELETON’ FRAMEWORK – A CONSULTATION DOCUMENT FOR INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL PARTNERS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

s 

Inclusive Growth Vision for Leeds City Region: 
Enabling everyone in LCR to contribute to and benefit from economic growth in a sustainable way, especially people and communities facing high barriers to high quality employment  

LOW SKILLS / ACCESS TO TRAINING  
Considerably more residents in LCR have no formal qualification (10% 
compared to 8% nationally) and significantly fewer are educated to degree level 
(31% vs. 38% in England). Skills directly affect employment opportunities. 
In spite of improvement over the last decade, 27% of LCR residents lack 
qualifications at Level 2 or above, ranking the LEP 33 out of 38. 

 

HEALTH INEQUALITIES  
Life expectancy across West Yorkshire and Harrogate is lower 
than the national average for both, men and women, at 1.1 years 
and 0.9 years respectively. The difference in healthy life expectancy 
is even starker, with the regional average for men being 2 years 
lower than in England and 1.8 years for women. Both, healthy and 
overall life expectancy are closely linked to deprivation, with a 7 
year difference between those most and least deprived nationally. 

DEPRIVATION  
LCR is ranked as the 12 most 
deprived LEP nationally (out of 39), 
with great differences on a local 
level. 
 

SOCIO-ECONOMIC FACTORS  
Groups that are particularly disadvantaged include older people, people with disabilities and 
people who lack formal qualifications. For instance, Pakistani / Bangladeshi women are 
around half as likely as white women to be in a job.  
The employment rate gap for ethnic minorities is 15 points across the City Region. 
 

 

 
INSUFFICIENT TRANSPORT 

CONNECTIONS  
Some of the most deprived communities in the 
City Region do not have access to sufficient and 
affordable transport 

LACK OF AWARENESS OF 
LOCAL OPPORTUNITIES 

    

 

UNEMPLOYMENT & ECONOMIC INACTIVITY 
The proportion of people of working age in employment has 
increased from a low-point during the recession of 68% to its 
current rate of 73%, a position last seen in 2006 but still lower 
than national average of 74%. Combined, unemployment and 

economic inactivity adds up to 9% of the working age population. 
 

LOW PAY/LIVING STANDARDS 
 

Child poverty – Yorkshire has some of the highest 
levels of child poverty in the UK, with about 40% of 
children affected in Bradford, 31% in Kirklees and 
29% in Leeds. 
Fuel poverty – affects over one in 10 households in 
Yorkshire and is at 12.1% higher than the national 
average. 

CONSTRAINED PRODUCTIVITY 
Leeds City Region is now a £69.6bn 
economy, and saw growth of 3.2% between 
2016 and 2017, lower than the England 
average. The York, North Yorkshire and 
East Riding (YNYER) LEP area economy, 
with GVA of £25.3bn, grew by 3% 

 

PEOPLE 

DIGITAL EXCLUSION 
About 6% of people in Yorkshire and Humber 

have zero digital skills, whilst 13% of the 
working population do not have basic digital 
skills. This is even more prevalent amongst 
benefit claimants, with 19% having low or no 

digital capability. 

EXCLUSION OF CERTAIN 
DEMOGRAPHICS  LACK OF 

E&D  LIMITED TALENT 
POOL 

POOR AIR QUALITY  POOR 
HEALTH OUTCOMES 

Worse in most deprived communities 
 

III.      ENABLERS AND INTERVENTIONS WITH A FOCUS ON THOSE COHORTS AND PLACES MOST IN NEED OF THOSE ENABLERS 

  

 

DISCONNECTED PLACES 

SUB-STANDARD QUALITY OF 
HOUSING 

Quality of housing and over-crowding 

LACK OF STRONG COMMUNITIES 

 Affordable housing  
 Improved transport connectivity  
 Broadband connections (> 30 Mbits) 
 Flood prevention 
 Transport links 

PHYSICAL INFRASTRUCTURE 

CULTURE/ BEHAVIOURAL CHANGE  

 Good work 
 Responsible employers 
 Progression pathways & training 
 Increased skills demand 

LCR Example interventions: 
Healthy Streets 
Inclusive Growth Corridors 

LCR Example interventions: 
TUC’s Great Jobs Agenda 
Equality and Diversity: New College’s & West Midlands’ E&D approach, expertise from the National Centre for Diversity 
Grant Thornton – Recruitment practices to remove barriers  
Procurement and Social Value  

 

LCR Example interventions: 
Kirklees Community Hubs to establish a place based children, family and community infrastructure to improve outcomes around children 
safeguarding, learning and skills, economic resilience and health) 
Social enterprises (e.g. LS14 Project)  

 

INTEGRATED INVESTMENTS AND INTERVENTIONS 

 Place based interventions to address 
complex barriers 

 School attainment  

SOCIAL INFRASTRUCTURE 

 Public health 
 Early Years support  
 Careers and enterprise advice in schools 
 Skills and employment services  
 Business support 

LCR Example interventions: 
Interventions to reduce levels of physical inactivity (Yorkshire Sport Foundation and CA Partner work around active travel, ‘Play Streets’, etc. 
Digital skills training for low income families and individuals. 
Economic services, e.g. LCR Enterprise advisers, Growth Hub, etc. 

SKILLS DEMAND  
There are relatively fewer 
higher skilled jobs in LCR - 
42% compared to 58% in 
London. In addition, higher 
skilled workers in the region 
are also paid less compared 
to national peers. 

LACK OF AVAILABILITY OF AND ACCESS TO 
‘GOOD’ JOBS / PRECARIOUS WORK 

23% of jobs in LCR paid below the real Living Wage, higher than 
the national average of 22%. 
A large proportion of people in LCR are under-employed (e.g. 
looking for an additional or new job with longer hours or people 
looking to increase their hours in their current job. Estimates for 
LCR suggest that as many as 100,000 people could be affected. 
 

LACK OF (AFFORDABLE) DIGITAL 
INFRASTRUCTURE   

 

LACK OF INNOVATION 

DISABILITY 
The employment rate gap 
for disabled people is 27 
percentage points across 
the City Region.  

 

I. REGIONAL INHIBITORS TO INCLUSIVE GROWTH (impacting on all policy areas) 
 PEOPLE 

BUSINESS/ECONOMY PLACE & CONNECTIVITY CLEAN GROWTH 

CONGESTION POOR QUALITY AND UNAFFORDABLE 
HOUSING 

 
II.              CONSEQUENCES & IMPACTS OF INHIBITORS 

 

• Inclusive labour market: Which groups of people are more likely to face barriers 
to taking up work in the region and which sectors tend to be less inclusive? 

• Employers offering ‘Good Work’: Which groups are less likely to be in secure 
work that pays the living wage and which sectors/ employer offer ‘good work’?  

• Educational attainment: Groups of pupils who tend to achieve lower grades 
which significantly impacts on their future employment options. Which schools are 
particularly good at overcoming barriers for these cohorts? 

• Social mobility: Where is social mobility less likely and which places tend to 
overcome the range of social mobility barriers more than others? 

• Progression pathways: Who are those more likely ‘stuck’ in low pay and 
precarious work? 

• Learning and training: Which residents are less likely to receive training from 
their employer? 

• To what extent is employer demand for low level skills perpetuating low paid 
jobs in the region? Increasing skills demand is likely to contribute to increased 
wages and productivity if it is accompanied by training.  

• To what extent are regional employers providing healthy workplaces to ensure 
inclusive and sustainable work. 

• Affordability of a place: Are house prices excluding people from 
living in certain places? 

• Inclusive transport connections: How well do current transport 
links enable more excluded communities to get to a place of work, 
training or learning? 

• Accessible culture: How accessible are cultural offers to 
everyone? 

• Etc. 

 

 

 

• Low carbon emissions: Which areas and groups of 
people are particularly affected by high levels of carbon 
emissions? Which industries have been leading in 
reducing their emissions? 

• Environmental sustainability: What is best practice in 
protecting and enhancing our natural, built and historic 
environment by moving to a low carbon economy? 

• Etc.  
 

 

LACK OF ‘CLEAN’ 
INFRASTRUCTURE 

BUSINESS/ECONOMY PLACE & CONNECTIVITY CLEAN GROWTH 

INCLUSIVE BUSINESS/ECONOMY INCLUSIVE PLACE & CONNECTIVITY CLEAN GROWTH 

SKILLS PROVISION 
One of the biggest challenges facing the City Region 
and most of its districts is a weak skills supply side. 

LACK OF BUSINESS INVESTMENT 
Capital investment and investment in R&D  

15

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: Inclusive Growth and Public Policy Panel

Date:  1 March 2019

Subject:  Broadband Rollout

Director(s): Alan Reiss, Director of Policy, Strategy and Communications

Author(s): Justin Wilson

1. Purpose of this report

1.1. To set the context to digital infrastructure and how it supports inclusive 
growth, and provide an update on the City Region’s work relating to digital 
infrastructure delivery. 
 

2. Information

Context
2.1. By 2020, the volume of global internet traffic is expected to be 95 times that of 

2005, and connected devices will outnumber the global population by nearly 
seven to one. In the UK, fixed internet traffic is set to double every two years, 
while mobile data traffic is set to increase further at a rate of 25% to 42% per 
year1. At the same time, the UK government has digitised most of its services, 
making reliable digital infrastructure a crucial component of digital inclusion.

2.2. The UK’s digital infrastructure must be able to support this rapid increase in 
traffic, providing coverage with sufficient capacity to ensure data can flow at 
the volume, speed and reliability required to meet the demands of modern 
life. It is essential to connect those localities and residents that do not 
currently have access to digital infrastructure. Broadband and mobile must be 
treated as the fourth utility, with everyone benefiting from improved 
connectivity. This will play a crucial role in ensuring that everyone, wherever 
they live and however they connect, can make full use of digital services and 
benefit from participation in the digital economy.

2.3. The economic and social benefits of digital connectivity are only realised 
when people are able to access, use and exploit the technology effectively. 
Notwithstanding the availability of the infrastructure (i.e. broadband 
connection) there are various barriers or challenges in terms of gaining 

1 UK Digital Strategy (Department for Digital, Culture, Media and Sport, 2017)

17

Agenda Item 7



access to digital services. These issues were highlighted in the Digital 
Inclusion report that was presented to the 4 December Panel meeting.

2.4. The Leeds City Region Digital Framework provides a framework for 
investment and a collective narrative/ ambition for ‘digital’ across the whole 
City Region. The Framework articulates an approach to the digital economy 
and to the development of digital capability across the City Region’s 
population and institutions that sets the direction of travel and encourages all 
the other actors in the region to align with both the LEP and the Combined 
Authority and each other.

Superfast West Yorkshire and York Broadband Programme – Delivery
2.5. The Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) published in 2016 has an ambition to 

ensure 99% of premises have access to superfast broadband of 30 Megabits 
per Second (Mbps) by 2021 to ensure fast and reliable connectivity. In 2016 
approximately 92% of homes and business premises in West Yorkshire and 
York had access to superfast broadband. 

2.6. The Superfast West Yorkshire and York Broadband Programme (SWYY) is 
currently in its second phase of delivery. Delivery of Phase Three is subject to 
an ongoing procurement process and the successful outcome of ESIF 
application in spring 2019. This programme delivers connections to Small and 
Medium-size Enterprises (SMEs)2 and residential premises are also 
connected. This public ‘gap funding’ model supports delivery of broadband in 
areas that are not commercially viable. A range of commercial infrastructure 
suppliers are delivering new broadband connections beyond the SYYY 
programme. 

2.7. It is currently estimated that delivery of the three phases3 of the Superfast 
Broadband Programme (alongside other public programmes and commercial 
delivery) will mean that 99% of premises in the region have access to 
superfast broadband by the end of 2021/22.

Superfast West Yorkshire and York Broadband Programme – Delivery 
Approach

2.8. The economic benefits of increased internet speeds for businesses include 
enhanced productivity and the ability to operate over larger markets. 
Households can also benefit from investment as it provides opportunities to 
reduce travel requirements by increasing opportunities for home working and 
learning and enhanced telecommunications. It is also essential to enabling all 
residents to access the wide range of digitised government services. It can 
also support wider efforts to increase digital inclusion. 

2.9. The European funding sources used to deliver the SWYY programme have a 
focus on SME connectivity. However, SMEs are spread over a wide 
geography which allows for residential areas to also be connected via 

2 As a core requirement of the European Structural and Investment Fund which is used the part fund 
the programme
3 Subject to the successful procurement of Phase Three of the Superfast West Yorkshire and York 
Programme

18



complementary funding sources but under the same investment programme. 
All phases of the SWYY programme seek to provide broad coverage to areas 
that do not currently have access to superfast broadband and are unlikely to 
receive connections commercially within the next three years. 

2.10. This means delivering a programme across a mix of urban and rural areas 
and residential and business areas. This provides a robust core approach that 
ensures high Value for Money which provides a strong business case when 
bidding for competitive external funding sources. 

2.11. Consideration has been given to whether priority locations, sites or corridors 
should be targeted in any future roll out of broadband infrastructure. However, 
this can be a complex task as the identification of specific locations can be 
challenging to deliver on an impartial/consistent basis for all council partners. 
This also needs to be balanced against the need to deliver the core economic 
output (SMEs connected) associated with the programme’s EA funding 
sources. 

2.12. The SEP’s Spatial Priority Areas and Enterprise Zones are a robust set of 
agreed City Region priorities. These locations have been highlighted as 
preferred areas to be connected for Phase Three of the programme.

2.13. SWYY Phase Three is currently at procurement stage. As part of this process 
provision has been added to the Invitation to Tender (ITT) documentation to 
account for social value. This includes requesting evidence on the: 
 extent jobs will be created/safeguarded; 
 creation of apprenticeships; and/or
 creation of opportunities for the long-term unemployed.

Superfast Broadband Coverage 
2.14. Nationally superfast broadband coverage has increased to 94% for homes 

and businesses in 2018, up from 91% in 2017. Coverage for SMEs is now 
90% nationally4.

2.15. Existing superfast broadband coverage across the West Yorkshire and York 
is illustrated at Appendix A. This is based on information gathered from the 
SWYY Broadband Programme. This analysis shows that superfast broadband 
coverage is widespread across the City Region. It is currently estimated that 
following completion of the Superfast West Yorkshire and York programme 
(Phase Two) and new connections being delivered commercially that 
coverage within that geography will be just over 97%. It is currently estimated 
that proposals for Phase Three of the programme and ongoing commercial 
delivery will increase coverage up to the 99% target outlined in the City 
Region’s Strategic Economic Plan.

2.16. The extent of current superfast broadband coverage shows that some of the 
most deprived areas of the City Region already have access to superfast 
connectivity. Looking at the Index of Multiple Deprivation ranking shows that 

4 Connected Nations 2018 UK Report (Ofcom, 2018)

19



the majority of the top 10% most deprived areas have superfast broadband 
access. 

Superfast Broadband Take Up
2.17. Notwithstanding the availability of superfast infrastructure, with 94% coverage 

nationally, only 45% of homes are subscribing to these services (Ofcom, 
2018). 

2.18. Locally within the areas supported by the SWYY Programme take up under 
Phase One has been 52.6% within the deployment area (at December 2018). 
Phase Two of the programme is currently being delivered with take up 
currently at 38.4%. However, it should be noted that some premises may 
access slower types of broadband which are much slower than superfast but 
may allow access to basic digital services e.g. online banking and emails.

2.19. Although local take up compares well to national averages it is clear that the 
delivery of superfast broadband is not being exploited to its full potential. This 
is likely to be due to a range of factors, including: Understanding of the 
infrastructure; Skills; Motivation; and Trust.

2.20. It is clear that further work could be done enhance take up of digital 
infrastructure. This is explored in greater detail in Item 8 (Digital Inclusion) of 
this meeting’s agenda. 

3. Financial Implications

3.1. There are no legal implications directly arising from this report.

4. Legal Implications

4.1. There are no legal implications directly arising from this report.

5. Staffing Implications

5.1. There are no immediate staffing implications. 

6. External Consultees

6.1. There are no implications directly arising from this report.

7. Recommendations

7.1. That the Panel notes the digital infrastructure work that is currently being 
delivered and the inclusive growth implications.

8. Background Documents 

8.1. None

9. Appendices

Appendix A: Superfast Broadband Coverage – West Yorkshire and York 

20



Esri, HER E, Garm in, © Ope nStre e tMap c ontributors, and th e  GIS use r c om m unity

Th is m ap is re prod uc e d  from  Ord nanc e  Surve y m ate rial w ith  th e  pe rm ission of Ord inanc e  Surve y 
on be h alf of th e  Controlle r of He r  Maje sty's Stationary offic e  © Crow n Copyrigh t
Unauth orise d  re prod uc tion infringes Crow n Copyrigh t and m ay le ad to prose c ution or c ivil proc e e d ings (100020521) 2019
© Ope nStre e tMap c ontributors

Superfast Broadband Availability West Yorkshire and York

Index of Multiple Deprivation
Bottom  10% IMD 2015

Ofcom 2018 Connected Nations - Average Download Speeds
≤ 30Mbit/s 

> 30Mbit/s 

Doc um e nt Path : T:\R e se arc h  and  Inte llige nc e \Proje c t Dire c tory\Proje c ts 100-199\100 - Broadband  Inc lusive  Grow th \100 Broadband  Inc lusive  Grow th .m xd

L

1:240,000@ A3

0 10k m

21

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix 1



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Report to: Inclusive Growth and Public Policy Panel

Date:  1 March 2019

Subject:  Digital Inclusion

Director(s): Alan Reiss, Director of Policy, Strategy and Communications 

Author(s): Sarah Bowes and Britta Berger-Voigt

1. Purpose of this report

1.1 To provide the Panel with an update on work to develop the Digital Inclusion 
Workstream and to give the Panel the opportunity to provide a steer on the 
direction of travel.

2. Information

2.1  Digital inclusion is an essential element of Inclusive Growth because it is 
about ensuring everyone is able to access and benefit from digital 
technologies and digital opportunities in modern society. Individuals and 
communities without digital capabilities can suffer exclusion because, for 
example, they are required to access an increasing range of public services 
and information including health care and benefit payments online. 

2.2 Digital Inclusion is a core strand of the new Leeds City Region Digital 
Framework which aims to transform the lives of citizens and businesses 
across the City Region by opening up opportunities through digital tech. The 
Digital Framework was adopted by the Combined Authority in December 2018 
after an extensive consultation showed that 95% of respondents strongly 
agreed with the framework’s inclusive ambition around ‘digital skills for all’.

2.3 The Panel therefore agreed in December to explore a range of delivery 
options to reduce digital exclusion in the Leeds City Region. 

2.4 The Panel recognised that there are already existing digital inclusion capacity 
building activities in place across the region, although approaches and 
delivery capacity varies between districts. Much of this activity is not delivered 
through formal classes and courses but instead through bespoke exploration 
of people’s individual interests and needs, and by carefully matching of 
content and services online which can meet those needs and stimulate those 

23

Agenda Item 8



interests. A better understanding of what activities are currently being 
delivered in this way will allow any future interventions to complement rather 
than duplicate these, and to build on and disseminate local best practice. 

2.5 For example, Leeds City Council, in partnership with the Good Things 
Foundation, have implemented a successful model of building capacity and 
upskilling a wide range of grassroots organisations to reduce digital exclusion 
in local communities. This activity is managed by a small core team and 
enables organisations within the communities to provide targeted digital 
support.  The team has been acknowledged nationally as best practice. This 
“100% Digital Leeds” movement also offers communities new technologies 
and innovative solutions, including tablet lending and digital champions. In 
terms of specific activities:

 As a practical result, Leeds City Council has partnered with wireless 
broadband provider 6G to reduce digital exclusion in Kirkstall and Armley 
by offering their services to 160 flats. Further outcomes of this partnership 
include financial savings, reduced isolation, better employment prospects 
and improved health and wellbeing.

 The Good Things Foundation is running a three-year programme - 
Widening Digital Participation - funded by NHS Digital. Widening Digital 
Participation aims to reduce digital exclusion in the UK, and ensure people 
have the skills they need to access relevant health information and health 
services online.

2.6 Since the last Panel meeting, the following work is progressing to develop a 
Leeds City Region approach to driving inclusive growth through digital 
inclusion, including:

 High level mapping of current digital inclusion activities that are being 
delivered by district partners (and others). This will be undertaken by local 
authority partners via the Panel support group.

 Development of a consultancy brief to identify what practical solutions 
could best further digital inclusion in the region. Potential delivery 
opportunities (and costed proposals) are sought where a regional 
approach could add value.

2.7 Examples of possible interventions which the consultancy brief could include 
(subject to securing funding): 

 Training and support provided to a core group across the City Region to 
upskill and promote digital inclusion in grassroots organisations - working 
through existing organisations and community groups to raise the capacity 
and capability of those to support local communities around digital.

 The rolling out of services such as tablet lending schemes, free Wi-Fi 
pilots, and targeted support workshops.

 The provision of free Wi-Fi in community areas, and schemes for 
accessing appropriate devices.

 Exploring the role of libraries and other community spaces and how these 
can be re-purposed in order to reduce isolation, create meeting places and 

24



digital training opportunities. Targeting people to use the space through 
people they trust and can relate to. 

2.8 In addition, Panel members could also consider supporting establishing a 
working group to share best practice and learning across districts. This would 
have resource implications. 

2.9 The consultancy brief will be out for tender in March, with a view to submitted 
proposals for delivery options by May. In the meantime, local authorities via 
the Panel support group will begin the process of mapping local grassroots 
organisations that are currently supporting residents around digital inclusion.

3. Financial Implications

3.1 £25k has been allocated for the consultancy brief. Further funding for delivery 
is currently being identified.

4. Legal Implications

4.1 There are no legal implications directly arising from this report.

5. Staffing Implications

5.1 There are no immediate staffing implications. 

6. External Consultees

6.1 Consultants would work within the remits outlined above.

7. Recommendations

7.1 That the Panel discusses the opportunities around digital inclusion activity and 
provide a steer on the suggested direction of travel. 

8. Background Documents

8.1 None 

9. Appendices

9.1 Digital Framework

25



This page is intentionally left blank



Digital for all businesses

Ambition: 

All our businesses will be equipped to exploit new digital technologies 
and take advantage of the opportunities for business growth through 
data.

Principles: 

Our prosperity and success depends on ensuring all our businesses 
have the opportunities to access and exploit the best digital technology 
and data to drive innovation and productivity. We will work to stimulate, 
encourage and enable the business leadership, behaviour changes and 
cultural shift needed to embrace the 4th industrial revolution.

27

A
genda Item

 8
A

ppendix 1

Presenter
Presentation Notes
The DigiChampz project highlighted the amazing amount of people across the region making and producing things at home or in small workshops. We need to find ways to bring SOHO (small office/home office) enterprise together, and support them. One way we can do this is to encourage use of locally-branded e-commerce platforms to support local entrepreneurs. 



Digital skills for all 

Ambition: 

Everyone in the City Region has the opportunity to develop the digital 
skills they need to flourish in the new digital economy.

Principle: To develop an evolving and joined up pipeline for digital skills 
to meet the needs of businesses and citizens:

-Inclusion / basic skills: Ensure everyone has basic digital capability 
to ensure no one is excluded from opportunities because of a lack 
of skills and can operate in a digital society.
-General skills: Look at opportunities for improving outcomes for 
those who have basic digital skills, but lack the confidence and 
knowledge to make the most of the digital economy, whether at work 
or beyond.
-Advanced skills: Ensure LCR develops, attracts and retains the 
talent needed for higher skilled roles (E.g. coding).

28

Presenter_1
Presentation Notes
UK's top credit union is based in South Yorkshire and cover the whole of the East Pennines region up to Newcastle. They have 30,000 members. How can we get up-skill their members, many of whom are already tech savvy (many have mobile phones).Can Digital Eagles help to sponsor STEM workshops in local libraries (our knowledge hubs that we may lose if not careful due to local government cuts) aimed at youngsters?Can we hold tech competitions for local people to solve other issues we face? Litter is a massive issue - it's not right that our economic strategy fails to address the problem when (1) we want more people to visit our outstanding scenery, and (2) live, (3) work and (4) play across the region. Are there other issues local communities are facing where a tech solution may be possible? Let's ask the question and get some innovative ideas back.



The digital service sector to enable the rest
Ambition: 

To become the leading digital services City Region and the best place to 
start and grow a digital technology business

Principle: 

To support our existing business base and grow the ecosystem of digital 
tech businesses across the City Region, building on existing strengths 
around Fintech, Data, Artificial Intelligence and Cyber Security.

29



World class digital infrastructure 
Ambition:

To build on existing strengths to further develop a globally competitive 
digital infrastructure delivered through public, private and community 
activity.

Principle: 

The development of the essential underlying enabling infrastructure 
across the City Region stimulated by activities to upskill business, 
employees and citizens to exploit and maximise impact, creating an 
environment which encourages further investment in infrastructure, from 
businesses and inward investors.

30

Presenter_2
Presentation Notes
We are at the heart of one of the most dependable, consistent and resilient land masses in the world - they are called the Pennines! We need to be convincing large global data users (e.g. Google) to build low profile eco-friendly data centres in our river valleys, including the Holme Valley. Centres powered by our local reservoirs and cooled by Pennine winds etc. Water runs down hill all the time through reservoir service tunnels (not just on the reservoir overflows -let's hydro-electric them).We have a good legal system adopted by many countries around the world, including USA, India and Canada. We speak English - still the business language, have a stable democracy (evolved and tested over 1,000 years) and geographically sit on Greenwich Mean Time - we can trade both ends of the world during our business day. Digital is changing this, of course. Despite digital, businesses still do deals with business through meetings and eye-balling potential partners.



Tech for good

Ambition: 

Leeds City Region, open for innovation, globally relevant and 
proactively embracing and exploiting technology and data to 
improve peoples lives. 

Principles: 

We will adopt a people first approach to ’ smart city thinking’, 
continuing to develop our approach as a City Region which 
proactively embraces and exploits technology and data 
effectively and intelligently to improve outcomes for all 
citizens across LCR.

To create the culture in which we actively embrace new 
technologies and use data to solve our biggest problems and 
create new economic opportunities.

31

Presenter_3
Presentation Notes
We need to build smarter local communities because of the funding crisis in local government. What can digital do to help with issues such as traffic congestion, rail overcrowding, commuter poverty, litter and dog fouling, supporting shops and businesses in villages and rural town centres?Can we encourage more remote/home working? Give people fast, robust and reliable broadband to meet ever changing work and play behaviours. I'm working with partners on a new Pennine Pound to encourage people to spend their money locally, support local trades and also deal with cashflow problem by encouraging early payments to settle accounts. What can digital do to replace banks that are closing down? More cash machines? Or structures, processes etc to help smaller businesses get access to finance through credit unions etc. Can we use digital to get people off streets, off benefits and into work? Is the Gig economy such a bad thing? The way we work is changing, we're more mobile. Let's work with pubs and cafes to support remote working by e.g having a dedicated business area with access to virtual assistants and networked services.This locks into mental health issues and isolation/loneliness. This region is full of countryside - a resource we should use to ensure we balance the 'digital' framework with the real world in which we live.



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Report to: Inclusive Growth and Public Policy Panel

Date:  1 March 2019

Subject:  Opportunities for West Yorkshire in the context of the NHS 
Long Term Plan and Inclusive Growth

Director(s): Alan Reiss, Director of Policy, Strategy and Communications 

Author(s): Rachael Loftus 

1. Purpose of this report

1.1. To inform Panel members of opportunities for West Yorkshire in the context of 
the NHS Long Term Plan and Inclusive Growth.

2. Information

The 10 Year Plan for England and 5 Year Strategy for West Yorkshire and 
Harrogate

2.1. The long awaited NHS Long Term Plan1 was published on 7th January 2019. 
It sets out the Government’s ambition for how the NHS can respond to the 
challenge of planning future health services for England in the context of 
demographic changes, increased demand and the overall context of finite 
financial resources.

2.2. The plan contains a bold vision that situates health services in the context of 
Population Health and includes references to situating health services in the 
kind of policies and outcomes that people in Local Government have been 
advocating for many years. 

2.3. Whilst the Long Term Plan acknowledges that health services, as 
commissioned and delivered by the NHS, are only part of the picture, it does 
fall short of being a fully rounded vision for the overall health and wellbeing of 
the nation. For example, whilst it references the need to work with local 
authorities in relation to social care and integration, it does not have a 
particularly strong emphasis on all influencing the factors that ensure healthy 
environments: decent housing, access to green and blue space, planning and 

1 The NHS England Long Term Plan can be read here: https://www.longtermplan.nhs.uk/

33

Agenda Item 9

https://www.longtermplan.nhs.uk/


urban design, and the kind of inclusive growth that expands employment and 
opportunity.

2.4. The publication of the national 10 Year Plan for the NHS – includes the 
commitment that every Integrated Care System2 in the country will develop a 
new 5 Year Strategy for Health and Care. The development of this plan offers 
the opportunity to provide a more rounded, local approach that includes the 
full role of the Local Authorities and other non-NHS partners.

2.5. This Strategy will be developed by September 2019. 

Opportunities to better link Health and Wellbeing with Inclusive Growth agendas:

2.6. The West Yorkshire 5 Year Strategy is being seen as a positive step forward 
and does provide some key opportunities for us at a regional systems level to 
link together the agendas of improved health services and the factors that 
generate and sustain health. 

2.7. The Inclusive Growth and Public Policy Panel (IGPPP) could play a key 
influencing role on including that broader emphasis on conditions for health in 
the development and delivery of the West Yorkshire and Harrogate 5 Year 
Strategy. For example: 

 The planned emphasis on prevention, healthy lifestyles and best start in life 
all point towards local areas creating the conditions for the whole population 
rather than just targeted interventions for people who become unwell. The 
IGPPP could advocate that this is formally connected to key agendas of 
planning for housing, transport and employment. 

 The focus on primary care/ local care partnerships aims to provide locally 
integrated services. The IGPPP could advocate that this links to key 
agendas of employment support, debt advice, housing in a fully integrated 
way.

 The increased emphasis on social prescribing provides the opportunity to 
situate this in the context of local availability, social activity and liveable 
communities not just for the role of the “prescriber” inside a medical setting. 
The IGPPP could ensure this is linked to key agendas of the Green and 
Blue Infrastructure Strategy, active travel and affordable travel.

 Increased collaboration between large institutions, with a potential 
reduction of aspects of the NHS’s rigid procurement regime. The IGPPP 
could link this to key agendas of local growth and the Anchor Institutions 
approach.

 Increased focus on digital solutions. The IGPPP could take the opportunity 
to link the key agendas of digital inclusion and the potential for the LEP and 
Leeds City Region to further develop its significant advances in health-tech 
and med-tech.

2 Integrated Care System (ICS) are partnerships of health and care organisations (including the Ambulance 
Service, Community Healthcare providers, Clinical Commissioning Groups, Healthwatches, Hospital Trusts, Local 
Authorities, Mental Health Trusts and the Voluntary and Community Sector) that work collectively to plan health 
and care services on a larger footprint. West Yorkshire and Harrogate Health and Care Partnership is an ICS in 
development – meaning it has some limited responsibilities for system oversight, but no devolved responsibilities 
or budgets.

34



 The focus on mental health in relation to employment. The IGPPP could 
take the opportunity to widen this further by emphasising that education and 
skills are the single biggest modifiable factor in relation to life time health – 
not solely to good mental health in the workplace. The Panel could also 
advocate that we include all the factors that contribute to low productivity 
and take joint focus on reducing the numbers of people currently excluded 
from the workplace, e.g. due to disability, having caring responsibilities, 
etc..

 The focus on health inequalities in the NHS Plan is largely on treating the 
symptoms (e.g. higher rates of cancer, stroke etc.). The IGPPP could take 
the opportunity to influence the 5 Year Strategy to include joint action to 
address the root causes of inequality and ill-health (e.g. air quality, poverty, 
housing, skills etc.). 

Next Steps: 

2.8. In West Yorkshire and Harrogate, a new 5 Year Strategy will be developed by 
September. 

2.9. The timetable includes a number of points where the IGPPP could play a role:

 Now to mid-April 2019 - Existing programmes carry out review and refresh. 
New programmes (in line with decisions above) are established. First cut of 
programme material received. – IGPPP could take part in the Review 
Process.

 April / May 2019
Check and confirm processes used to confirm programme objectives and 
identify gaps. – IGPPP could help identify gaps and make connections 
to Inclusive Growth priorities. 

 5 June 2019
Health and Care Public Partnership Board confirms priorities and approach 
– Council Leaders and Health and Wellbeing Board Chairs have the 
opportunity to ensure IG priorities are included. 

 June / July 2019
First draft of the strategy developed for Boards. – IGPPP could formally 
receive and comment on the draft strategy

 3 September 2019
Health and Care Public Partnership Board approves final document. - 
Council Leaders and Health and Wellbeing Board Chairs have the 
opportunity to sign off and ensure Inclusive Growth priorities are 
included.

2.10. The Inclusive Growth Panel is asked to consider options for:
 Influencing the development of the 5 Year Strategy for West Yorkshire and 

Harrogate;
 Integrating health and care outcomes into the work of the IGPPP.

35



3. Financial Implications

3.1. There are no financial implication directly arising from this report.

4. Legal Implications

4.1. There are no legal implications directly arising from this report.

5. Staffing Implications

5.1. There are no immediate staffing implications directly arising from this report.

6. External Consultees

6.1. There are no implications directly arising from this report.

7. Recommendations

7.1 That the Panel discusses the opportunities to influence and integrate the health 
and care agenda in regards to the 5 Year Strategy for West Yorkshire and 
Harrogate and Inclusive Growth.

8. Background Documents 

8.1. None

9. Appendices

9.1. None

36



Report to: Inclusive Growth and Public Policy Panel

Date:  1 March 2019

Subject:  Review of Inclusive Growth for Business Grants

Director(s): Sue Cooke, Executive Head of Economic Services

Author(s): Lorna Holroyd

1 Purpose of this report

1.1 To note the Inclusive Growth commitments for business grants from the LEP’s 
Business Growth Programme (BGP) and their effectiveness to date discussed 
at the February meeting of the Business Innovation and Growth Panel (BIG).

2 Information

Background

2.1 In early 2018, the Leeds City Region Enterprise Partnership (the LEP) Board 
and the Combined Authority agreed that work should begin on the 
development of a Policy Framework and Local Inclusive Industrial Strategy 
(LIIS) for Leeds City Region. Inclusive growth is embedded as an enabler of 
the Policy Framework and will act as a strategic driver for strategies aligned to 
the Policy Framework.
 

2.2 As initial discussions around the Policy Framework and the LIIS progressed, it 
was identified that an opportunity existed to promote inclusive growth through 
the delivery of business grant programmes. In the first instance, it was 
recommended that inclusive growth outcomes be introduced for BGP, to ask 
capital grant recipients to contribute more proportionately on a range of social 
value commitments, as well as incentivise payment of the Real Living Wage 
for jobs supported by the grant programme. 

2.3 The BIG Panel considered a paper on the introduction of inclusive growth 
criteria for BGP recipients at its meeting on 7 March 2018. The revised criteria 
and associated conditions were then approved by the LEP Board at its 
meeting on 27 March 2018 and Combined Authority on 10 May 2018. The 
revised criteria were implemented for business applicants to BGP from July 
2018. The criteria are outlined in Appendix 1.

37

Agenda Item 10



2.4 The Combined Authority asked for a review to be taken after six months to 
assess the initial effectiveness of the approach, and to inform decisions as to 
whether to continue and/or expand the approach further.

Review of Initial Effectiveness

2.5 Prior to the introduction of the revised criteria, analysis of BGP grants awarded 
in the previous 12 months  (June 2017 to June 2018) showed that 42% of the 
jobs created (totalling 466) were paying below the Real Living Wage.

2.7 Since the introduction of the new criteria in July 2018, 47 BGP applications 
have been approved. These applications are linked to the creation of 172 new 
jobs, 140 of which are proposed to pay above the Real Living Wage. This 
represents 81% of all of the jobs to be created via the investment projects to 
be supported on BGP. So far, six of these jobs have been created, five of 
which are paying at least the Real Living Wage. This represents 83% of jobs 
created in the introductory phase to date, and this will continue to be closely 
monitored as the supported projects progress and the associated jobs are 
filled. 

2.8 Additionally, the wage levels of all jobs created on the BGP since July 2018 
have also been monitored, including for those projects approved prior to the 
introduction of the new criteria. This monitoring has shown that of the 283.5 
jobs created since July 2018, 198 (69.8%) are paying at least the Real Living 
Wage. 

2.9 Nine BGP applications of above £50,000 have been approved since the 
introduction of the new approach. Applicants at this grant level are required to 
commit to additional inclusive growth commitments, as well as creating new 
jobs. So far, 22 additional inclusive growth commitments have been secured 
from these nine grant recipients. A list of inclusive growth commitments has 
been developed that the businesses can adopt, and support is available from 
the LEP/Combined Authority, and its partners, such as Jobcentre Plus and 
Local Authorities, to implement the various commitments (see Appendix 2).   

2.10 The current commitments include: - Inspire the next generation by working 
with schools and/or colleges; Develop a Skills Plan including apprenticeships; 
Offer training to low paid staff to help them progress; Offer work opportunities 
to local people with disabilities or health issues; Offer more sustainable ‘green 
travel’ options to employees; Undertake an energy audit to identify ways to 
reduce energy consumption; Undertake a supply chain audit to identify 
opportunities to buy more from local suppliers, small business suppliers in 
accordance with the Prompt Payment Code -  
http://www.promptpaymentcode.org.uk/ - including a commitment to pay all 
suppliers within 60 days and to commit to 30 days as the norm; Commit to 
paying staff the Real Living Wage within an agreed timescale.

2.11 Of commitments agreed with businesses to date, the highest number are for 
undertaking an energy audit (22.7%), followed by offering more sustainable 

38

http://www.promptpaymentcode.org.uk/


green travel options for employees and developing a skills plan (both 18.2%). 
All commitments have had at least one adoption, except for undertaking a 
supply chain audit to identify opportunities to buy more from local suppliers, 
and the new Supply Chain development Programme at the University of 
Huddersfield will support businesses with this commitment in due course.  

   
2.12 Informal feedback from businesses has been positive to date, with the majority 

being receptive to the new approach. As perhaps expected, the smaller 
businesses have been those that have expressed some concern related to 
their more limited resources to implement the commitments. 

2.13 Payment of the Real Living Wage has been the main challenge reported for 
businesses since the new approach has been implemented, in particular for 
those operating in lower value sectors in geographical areas where wages are 
lower than the city region average, often in disadvantaged areas, so the 
decision to adopt a two-tier grant rate has been beneficial to avoid exclusion of 
such firms from grant support outright.   

2.14 BIG Panel was therefore asked to consider whether the inclusive growth 
criteria and commitments for business growth programme should be 
continued.

Broadening the inclusive growth approach

2.15 At its meeting on 14 September 2018, the Combined Authority’s Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee considered a report on the business grants currently 
delivered by the Combined Authority/LEP. This covered an update on the 
outputs associated with each grant programme and the recent introduction of 
the inclusive growth approach for capital grants. 

2.16 The Committee recommended that consideration be given to extending the 
inclusive growth approach to the grant elements of all business support 
programmes and also to grants of all values. 

2.17 The LEP currently manages seven grant programmes for businesses, and has 
contributed match funding to a further two managed by Leeds City Council on 
behalf of the city region. These are listed in Appendix 2. Across these 
programmes, 894 grants were approved in 2017/18, and 521 have been 
approved to date in 2018/19.

2.18 BIG Panel was therefore also asked to consider the benefits and risks of 
extending/adapting the approach to other grant programmes in the LEP’s 
portfolio. Considerations include the potential impact on smaller businesses 
arising from perceived bureaucracy; and therefore potential impact on the 
take-up of the grants; the proportionality of applying the criteria and 
commitments for all grant values, particularly where no jobs are created (e.g. 
the Resource Efficiency Fund grant); and the additional cost of staffing 
resources required to monitor the delivery of the commitments and outcomes 
across all grant awards, particularly the smaller £2,000 Apprenticeship Grant 
for Employers. 

39



3 Financial Implications

3.1 There may be financial implications arising from the recommendation to 
extend inclusive growth commitments more widely, in terms of extra staff 
monitoring resources required. There may also be potential risk to programme 
spend and outputs on contracted growth deal programmes and risk of 
clawback on ESIF/government funded contracts, if there is a disincentive 
effect to businesses for applying for grant support from those programmes.

4 Legal Implications

4.1 There are no legal implications directly arising from this report. However, there 
would be increased requirement for legal resources for contracting and 
compliance issues if the inclusive growth criteria were to be applied to grants 
on all programmes, and at all values.  

5 Staffing Implications

5.1 There may be staffing implications relating to paragraph 3.1 and 4.1 above.

6 External Consultees

6.1 No external consultations have taken place. The Business, Innovation and 
Growth Panel has also been consulted.

7 Recommendations

7.1 That the Panel notes the progress and effectiveness of the approach to date 
on the implementation of the new inclusive growth criteria and commitments to 
the BGP. 

8 Background Documents

8.1 None.

9 Appendices

9.1 Appendix 1 – New criteria for the Business Growth Programme 

9.2 Appendix 2 – List of LEP Grant Programmes

40



Appendix 2 

Business Growth Programme Grant criteria 

The Leeds City Region Enterprise Partnership (LEP) is incentivising business to pay 
the real Living Wage through its Business Growth Programme (BGP). Recipients are 
expected to meet certain core criteria, including:

 Investment projects must create permanent new jobs in the Leeds City Region
 Applicants will be incentivised to employ staff on or above £9 per hour, by 

allocating more grant per new job for those paying that rate
 All new jobs funded by the LEP grant must be paid at least the National Living 

Wage or Minimum Wage (£7.83 per hour from age 25+ as of April 2018)
 Apprenticeship jobs are permissible but applicants are expected to pay the 

apprentice at least the National Minimum Wage appropriate for the age of the 
apprentice (rather than the lower national apprenticeship wage)

 For each new job created, the following maximum amounts will be available to 
the applicants: 

Pay Rates for New Jobs Created with LEP Grant Maximum 
Amount per 
new job 

Pay £9 per hour (Real Living Wage) £12,500

Pay £7.83 per hour (National Living Wage / Minimum Wage)
 

£7,500

 Applicants must have private finance available: either of their own, from a 
bank, or other commercial finance to invest alongside the grant

 For every £1 of LEP funding sought, applicants must be able to provide at 
least £4 of private sector investment

 The minimum grant level is £10,000 and total project cost must be at least 
£50,000 - therefore applicants must have at least £40,000 of private sector 
finance to invest for every £10,000 of grant

 Applicants must be established for at least 12 months and must operate from 
commercial premises

 Applicants must generate the majority of their turnover by trading with other 
businesses, or applications must demonstrate how the grant-supported 
project will lead to this

 Projects must support the City Region’s key growth sectors and/or their direct 
supply chains: specifically health and life sciences, digital and creative 
industries, low carbon and environmental industries, manufacturing, financial 
and professional services or business to business services  

41

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



 Refurbishment or renovation projects will only be supported where the 
applicant will be the sole occupier within the refurbished or renovated property  

 Businesses engaged in retailing or providing localised business to consumer 
services are not eligible for grant support. However, applications from 
businesses who derive their turnover exclusively from e-commerce/internet 
sales will be considered on a case by case basis    

Additional Inclusive Growth Commitments

Businesses receiving grants of over £50,000 will be expected to offer additional 
“inclusive growth” commitments as outlined below:

 Inspire the next generation by working with schools and/or colleges
 Develop a Skills Plan including Apprenticeships
 Offer training to low paid staff to help them progress
 Offer work opportunities to local people with disabilities or health issues
 Offer more sustainable ‘green travel’ options to employees
 Undertake an energy audit to identify ways to reduce energy consumption
 Undertake a supply chain audit to identify opportunities to buy more from local 

suppliers
 Pay small business suppliers in accordance with the Prompt Payment Code - 

http://www.promptpaymentcode.org.uk/ - including a commitment to pay all 
suppliers within 60 days and to commit to 30 days as the norm.  

 Commit to paying staff the Real Living Wage within an agreed timescale.

The expected commitment will vary depending on the level of grant awarded:

 For grants from £50,000 - £99,000, the applicant is expected to agree to two or 
more of the additional commitments.

 For grants from £100,000 -£249,000, the applicant is expected to agree to 
three or more of the additional commitments.

 For grants over £250,000, the applicant is expected to agree to four or more of 
the additional commitments, one of which must be paying staff the Real Living 
Wage. 

42

http://www.promptpaymentcode.org.uk/


Appendix 3

List of Leeds City Region Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Grant Programmes 

The LEP currently offers the following grants to businesses:

Grant Scheme Purpose Range of 
grant 
awards £

Number of 
grants 
awarded 
(18/19 to end 
December)

Business Growth 
Programme

Provides capital grants to 
businesses within priority 
sectors that enable them to 
grow and create new jobs.

£10-250k 42

Access to Capital 
Grants (A2CG)

Provides capital grants to SME 
businesses with projects linked 
to innovation, digital, supply 
chain 
development/sustainability and 
new-start businesses. Also 
provides funding for the grant 
element of Strategic Business 
Growth and part funds the 
grant element of Access 
Innovation and partner 
products Ad:venture and 
Digital Enterprise (covered 
below).

£10k-£100k 43

Strategic Business 
Growth

Provides capital grants to high 
growth SME businesses 
engaging with the advisory 
support element of the 
Strategic Business Growth 
programme. 

£10k-£40k 25

Resource 
Efficiency Fund

Provides financial support to 
SME businesses for capital 
investment projects that lead to 
reductions in use of energy, 
water and waste.

£1k-£10k 35

Access Innovation Provides grants to SME 
businesses developing new 
products and processes.

£10k-£100k 37

Strategic Inward 
Investment Fund

Provides capital grants to 
businesses investing in the 
Leeds City Region that are 
creating at least 50 new jobs.

€200k-£1m 1

43

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 2



Digital Inward 
Investment Fund

Provides capital grants to 
digital businesses investing in 
the Leeds City Region that are 
creating at least 5 new jobs.

£10k-£50k 2

Apprenticeship 
Grant for 
Employers

Supports SME businesses to 
recruit individuals into 
employment through 
apprenticeships.

£2-2.5k 1

Programmes managed by Leeds City Council which include some LEP capital 
grant element.

Ad-venture 
(start-ups)

Provides capital grants to new 
and early-start SME 
businesses within priority 
sectors that enable them to 
grow and create new jobs.

£0.5k-£25k 54

Digital Enterprise Provides grants to SME 
businesses to invest in digital 
technologies.

£0.5k-£5k 281

44



Report to: Inclusive Growth and Public Policy Panel

Date:  1 March 2019

Subject:  Funding for Inclusive Growth

Director(s): Alan Reiss, Director of Policy, Strategy and Communications 

Author(s): Britta Berger-Voigt

1. Purpose of this report

1.1 To provide Panel members with an update on funding to drive inclusive growth 
in the City Region, in particular the Inclusive Growth element of the Growing 
Places Fund (GPF). 

2. Information

Context and principles

2.1 As one of the first devolved funding streams to the City Region, the GPF is 
aimed at growth projects not able to source full funding on the open market.

2.2 Since the GPF was launched in 2011/12, the policy context has evolved:
 Economic and social conditions and priorities have changed, with the City 

Region refreshing its Policy Framework and the emerging Local, Inclusive 
Industrial Strategy, with Inclusive Growth at their heart.

 Other public grant and loan funding streams have become available, 
including the Revolving Investment Fund, European Structural and 
Regeneration Funds and Growth Deal. 

2.3 With significant capital receipts returned to the GPF and more forecast to 
arrive by 2019/20, the LEP Board meeting of 20 September 2018 agreed to 
use the returned funds to support significant ongoing returnable investment 
and grant funding to drive Inclusive Growth across the City Region. LEP Board 
members agreed in principle that capital returned funds generated through the 
Growing Places Fund are used as follows:
 To continue providing investment capital on a returnable basis which was 

agreed to comprise the significant majority of funds (e.g. 80%) to continue 
to generate the scale of returns to provide longevity.   

45

Agenda Item 11



 To allocate funding to directly (grant) fund projects that improve outcomes 
that support Inclusive Growth. It was agreed this should constitute about 
20% of the GPF capital returned funds. 

2.4 The available element of the GPF for new inclusive growth activities across 
the City Region is currently circa £700,000. Panel members will receive 
regular updates about future funding available.

2.5 The role of Panel members will be to advise on funding allocation across: 

a) A range of new Inclusive Growth programmes to be approved by the 
Panel (see section 2.6 for more details).

b) Existing/planned programmes to ensure these are delivered in an inclusive 
way. Examples of existing/planned programmes with an explicit 
consideration of inclusion include:
o Enterprise Advisors giving careers advice and employability skills to 

disadvantaged students
o Inclusive Growth element of Business Grants (see item 10 for details)
o Pop-up Business Advice Café to bring business advice into 

communities
o Inclusive Growth Corridors with ongoing work to ensure transport 

connections benefit deprived communities
o Business Rate Pool projects aimed at driving Inclusive Growth (see 

item 10 in the December 2018 IGPPP papers).

Next steps

2.5 Options on guiding principles for the prioritisation of the Inclusive Growth 
funding will be presented at the next meeting. The principles could be related 
to funding projects that are addressing particular ‘exclusion challenges’ in the 
City Region, aligned with those identified in the Inclusive Growth strategic 
Framework. For example, they could cover ensuring inclusive access to: 

 Skills and training
 Affordable housing
 ‘Good work’ and in-work progression
 Organisations that increase digital access
 Healthy workplaces
 Business investment for third sector organisations which directly address 

exclusion of particular communities/ groups of residents
 A greater awareness of local employment opportunities
 Accessible and affordable transport connections  
 Employment opportunities for residents with disabilities

In particular, the funding could build on the inclusive growth corridor work 
already undertaken.

2.6 Potential options of complementing the Inclusive Growth funding with ESF 
match-funding will also be presented at the next Panel meeting.

46



3. Financial Implications

3.1 Decisions about the principles for the reinvestment of returned funds from the 
Fund (by the Inclusive Growth and Public Policy Panel and the LEP Board) will 
have financial implications. A further report will be required to provide more 
details on the financial implications based on the operationalisation of the LEP 
Board’s decision. This will need to look at all potential costs and income from 
the fund including interest, technical support, resource and potentially 
balancing a portfolio of risk. 

4. Legal Implications

4.1 There are no direct legal implications as a result of this report.  

5. Staffing Implications

5.1 There are no direction staffing implications arising from this report.  

6. External Consultees

6.1 There are no external consultations arising from this report.

7. Recommendations

7.1 That the Panel notes the update on available funding to drive Inclusive Growth 
either through existing/ planned programmes or new targeted programmes.

7.2 For Panel members to provide comments on the development of tangible 
principles on the prioritisation of Inclusive Growth funding. 

8. Background Documents
8.1 None

9. Appendices
9.1 None

47



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the meeting held on 4 December 2018
	5 Learning from Inclusive Growth best practice
	6 Inclusive Growth Strategic Framework
	Item 6i - Appendix 1 - DRAFT Inclusive Growth 'skeleton' Framework CLEARED

	7 Broadband Rollout
	Item 7i - Connected Nations Download Speed amd IMD CLEARED

	8 Digital Inclusion
	Item 8i - Appendix 1 Digital Framework CLEARED
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5


	9 Opportunities for West Yorkshire in the context of the NHS Long Term Plan and Inclusive Growth
	10 Review of Inclusive Growth for Business Grants
	Item 10i - Appendix 1 - Business Growth Programme Grant criteria CLEARED
	Item 10ii - Appendix 2 - List of LEP Grant Programmes CLEARED

	11 Funding for Inclusive Growth

